
 

 

Transportation Alternatives (TA) and Congestion Mitigation and 
Air Quality (GMAQ) Competitive Funding Proposal  
 

Frequently Asked Questions   
 

1. What is the Competitive Funding Proposal?  

The Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) is administering a Competitive Funding Proposal 
(CFP) for Transportation Alternatives (TA) and Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) 
Improvement programs. This process is designed to streamline project intake and evaluation, 
simplifying the application process for locals seeking federal funding support. 

2. Is this Competitive Funding Proposal new? 

CMAQ and TA are both pre-existing, federally funded programs. The Georgia Department of 
Transportation (GDOT) manages the distribution of a portion of the TA program funds and regularly 
issues calls for applications. Based on the Federal Highway Administration’s (FHWA) updated 
CMAQ guidance from November 2024, GDOT is assuming responsibility for managing the 
solicitation of CMAQ projects statewide.  Per FHWA’s updated guidance, CMAQ funds may be 
invested in all ozone, CO, and PM nonattainment and maintenance areas across the State, 
including former areas where the NAAQS has been revoked or the maintenance period has been 
satisfied.   The CMAQ funds may also be invested in maintenance areas that have approved 
maintenance plans under CAA Section 175A (42 U.S.C. 7505a) and 23 U.S.C. 149(b)). This includes 
areas that previously were not eligible for CMAQ funding. Please reference this eligibility map to see 
if your project falls in a CMAQ eligible area before submitting. 

 

If you have previously applied for CMAQ funding through your local MPO, those applications should 
now be submitted through this Competitive Funding Proposal. If you have any additional questions 
on this new process, please contact CFP_Help@dot.ga.gov.  

3. How does this relate to the State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) process?  

This process will inform STIP development by advancing local priority projects that maximize the 
return on state investment. 

4. What are the eligibility requirements for applicants and projects? 

To be eligible, projects must be located within a TA or CMAQ eligible area. Please refer to the 
eligibility map.  
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In addition, only entities listed below may submit applications, and each entity may submit up to 
two applications: 

• Cities  
• Counties  
• Transit Agencies  
• Regional Transportation Authorities, including MPOs* 
• Natural Resources or Public Land Agencies  
• School Districts and individual Schools  
• Tribal Governments  
• Other local or regional governmental entities responsible for transportation or recreational 

trail oversight  

*Per federal guidance, MPOs in CMAQ eligible areas may apply for funding support for projects in 
their area. MPOs classified as “small urbanized areas” (population under 200,000) are eligible to 
apply for TA funding support for projects in their area.  

 

 
5. What types of projects are eligible for funding? 

Potential projects include roadway, transit, bike/pedestrian, intermodal, mobility services, and 
technology/innovation investments eligible for TA and CMAQ funding. Eligible project types in the TA 
eligible areas are primarily pedestrian and bicycle facilities, pedestrian streetscaping projects and 
Safe Routes to School projects. Additional project types may qualify in the CMAQ eligible areas, 
including roundabouts, intersection improvements, traffic signalization, traffic engineering, 
intelligent transportation systems as well as other projects that contribute to congestion mitigation 
and/or emissions reduction. 

Please visit FHWA CMAQ and TA websites for more information. 

6. What is the application deadline and timeline? 

GDOT will accept funding applications from September 15, 2025, through October 31, 
2025. Applications submitted after October 31 will not be considered. 

7. If a portion of my project falls outside of my local jurisdiction, is it eligible to be considered for 
CAMQ/TA funding? 

Yes, but each impacted jurisdiction must provide a letter of support. 

8. Is a 20% local match required to apply? 

For most projects applying for TA and CMAQ funding support, a 20% local match is required. There 
are some exceptions where a jurisdiction with a population under 5000 may apply to receive 
additional funding support.  Some eligible projects may qualify for a higher share of federal dollars 

https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/air_quality/cmaq/
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/transportation_alternatives/


 

 

based on project type, population, and roadway classification. Please visit FHWA CMAQ and TA 
websites for more information. 

The level of local match will be considered in project evaluation. Projects that demonstrate strong 
local financial support will yield a higher return on investment. The greater the local match, the 
more competitive the project becomes. 

9. What funding sources can be used for local contributions?  

Multiple sources, including private funds, may be used for local contributions, provided there is 
current documentation of the commitment.  

10. What is needed to illustrate a local commitment? 

Local funding commitments may include, but are not limited to, City or County resolutions, 
documentation of funding through an approved SPLOST, or an award letter through another 
program. Documentation of this funding must be provided at the time of application. 

11. Is there a maximum or minimum fund request? 

There will be no maximum. Minimum requests may apply for GDOT-sponsored projects depending 
on the project phase (Preliminary Engineering, Right-of-Way, Construction). 

12. What is the Georgia Transportation Infrastructure Bank (GTIB) Loan? 

The Georgia Transportation Infrastructure Bank (GTIB) is a grant and low-interest loan program 
administered by the State Road and Tollway Authority (SRTA). Please visit their site for more 
information.  

13. What phases of a project are eligible for funding? 

Preliminary Engineering (PE), Right-of-way (ROW) acquisition, and Construction (CST) phases are 
eligible to be considered for funding. Applicants seeking ROW funding support should also include 
construction costs.  

14. What will I need to submit my application? 

What you’ll need to complete the application: 
•  Applicant information  

o  General contact information 
o If a project being submitted falls in multiple jurisdictions, provide documented 

letters of support from those jurisdictions. Note: this is not required to be submitted 
at the time of application; applicants have until December 31 to submit this 
supporting documentation. 

• Project information 
o Project type and detailed description 
o Project justification 
o Documentation of previously completed work on the project 
o Project and phase cost estimates 

https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/air_quality/cmaq/
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/transportation_alternatives/
https://srta.ga.gov/gtib/


 

 

o Documentation of local funding commitment – a minimum of 20% local match is 
required in most instances to qualify. (Some exceptions apply.) 

o Detailed description of project location (including project limits, mile markers, and 
other route ID numbers 

o Reference to local, regional, and state plans in which this project is included 
o Documentation of local/public support for the project (letters of support). 
o CMAQ eligible projects will need to provide emissions and congestion reduction 

estimates 
 

15. How and when will applicants be notified of the result of their application?  

The application review process will take approximately 60 days. Applicants will be notified if 
additional information is needed after the application period closes. Funding decisions will be 
made in the spring of 2026 and will be announced via the CFP website.  

16. Is the application the same for all project types? 

Yes, the base application is the same. Specific questions may appear based on project type to 
gather information for costing analysis and further evaluation of the application. 

17. How are ineligible projects handled? 

Once a project has been evaluated and is considered ineligible, GDOT will notify the applicant. 

18. Will applications be reconsidered in the next round if it is not considered in this round of 
applications? 

Applications are only considered for one round/one year. Applicants will need to reapply in the next 
round/year to be considered again. 

19. If I have previously applied for funding through a GDOT competitive funding proposal, will I need 
to apply? 

Yes, if you have applied for a previous competitive funding program and were not awarded, you will 
need to submit an application for consideration. 

20. Am I able to save my application and return to it later? 

The application does save your progress, but this feature has limitations. Progress is saved only if 
you complete the application on the same desktop and within the same browser. If your cache is 
cleared, you may lose the responses you have entered so far. We recommend using the sample 
application to draft and compile your responses. When you're ready to submit, simply copy and 
paste your completed responses into the application portal. 

https://www.dot.ga.gov/GDOT/Pages/CFP.aspx
https://www.dot.ga.gov/InvestSmart/Documents/CFP/CFP_Sample_Application.pdf
https://www.dot.ga.gov/InvestSmart/Documents/CFP/CFP_Sample_Application.pdf

